MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 1988

20TH BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES

STAMFORD, CONNECTICUT

A regular monthly meeting of the 20th Board of Representatives of the City of Stamford was held on Monday, August 8, 1988, in the Legislative Chambers of the Board in the Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard, Stamford, Connecticut.

The meeting was called to order at 8:10 p.m. by President Sandra Goldstein, after both political parties had met in Caucus.

INVOCATION was given by Rep. Jeremiah Livingston D-5.

"Our Father, who art in heaven, hallowed be Thy name. Thy kingdom come. Thy will be done on earth, as it is in heaven. Give us this day our daily bread. And forgive us our trespasses, as we forgive those who tresspass against us. And lead us not into temptation, but deliver us from evil for Thine is the kingdom, power and glory forever and ever. Amen."

MR. LIVINGSTON thanked everyone for all their prayers, cards and get well wishes he received during his recent illness. He said it was a great feeling to be living and feeling good.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG was led by President Sandra Goldstein.

ROLL CALL was taken by Clerk of the Board Annie M. Summerville. There were 35 members present and 5 absent. Absent were Reps. Michael Fedele, Kathleen Reilly (excused), Donald Donahue (excused), David Blum (excused), and David Jachimczyk.

The Chair declared a quorum.

MACHINE TEST VOTE: After test votes were taken by the President, the machine was in good working order.

MOMENTS OF SILENCE: None

MAYOR THOM SERRANI'S ANNUAL MESSAGE FOR FISCAL YEAR 1987/88 AS PER CHARTER SECTION 3-10-6. Mayor Serrani

MAYOR SERRANI summarized the activities, accomplishments and conditions of the City for fiscal year 1987/88. A copy of his report is attached to the official file copy of the Minutes in the Board of Representatives office and at the office of the Town Clerk. A copy of the report was given to each member of the Board at the July 11, 1988 Board meeting.

STANDING COMMITTEES

STEERING COMMITTEE: Chairperson Sandra Goldstein

REPORT.

2.

MR. BOCCUZZI Moved to waive the reading of the Steering Committee report. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote.

The Steering Committee met on Wednesday, July 13, 1988, in the Democratic Caucus Room of the Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard. The meeting was called to order at 7:35 p.m. by Chairwoman Sandra Goldstein who declared a quorum.

Present at the meeting:

Sandra Goldstein,	Chairwoman	Mildred Perillo	Thomas Pia
John Boccuzzi		Thomas Burke	Stanley Esposito
David Martin		James Rubino	David Blum
Scott Morris		Nicholas Pavia	Len Gambino, WSTC
Maria Nakian		Ellen Bromley	John Roman, WSTC
Ruth Powers		Audrey Maihock	Sandra Schlachtmeyer
Mary Lou Rinaldi		John Zelinski	Anne Kachaluba

Chairwoman Goldstein announced that Janet Weintraub is appointed to sit on the Personnel and Public Works and Sewer Committees.

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were all ll names on the Tentative Steering Agenda and one name appearing on the Pending Agenda: Mr. Irving Slifkin for Zoning Board. There were some errors on the Tentative Steering Agenda; corrections were made.

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were 12 of the 14 items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered off the Agenda were two items that were taken care of at the July 11, 1988 Board meeting: \$4,360 for the Health Department WIC program and \$28,548 for the Health Department Maternal & Child Health grant.

LEGISLATIVE AND RULES COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda was one of the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered off the Agenda was (LER20.36) proposed change to the Rules of Order to change the Coliseum Authority Liaison Committee from three to five members. Ordered on the Agenda from the Addenda to the Tentative Steering Agenda were the six item appearing there and ordered on the Agenda was one item moved from the Coliseum Authority Liaison Committee and that being the Matter of the contract concerning the Stamford Center of the Arts, the Coliseum Authority and the Stamford Theatre Properties.

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - Ordered off the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda from the Addenda were the three items appearing there.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWER COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda from the Addenda were the two items appearing there.

STEERING COMMITTEE REPORT: (continued)

HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Addenda.

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were the three items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda, also, the two items appearing on the Addenda.

EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Addenda.

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda, also, the one item appearing on the Addenda.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda and the three items on the Addenda.

LABOR CONTRACTS LIAISON COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

HOUSE COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda was one item from the Addenda and one item on the Addenda was moved into the Legislative and Rules Committee; that item concerned the contract of the Stamford Center of the Arts, the Coliseum Authority and Stamford Theatre Properties.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE TO ASSESS PRIORITY ISSUES - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

ETHICS COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Addenda.

RESOLUTIONS - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>ADJOURNMENT</u> - There being no further business to come before the Steering Committee, upon a motion made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m.

Sandra Goldstein, Chairwoman Steering Committee

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE - Mildred Perillo, Chairwoman

MRS. PERILLO said the Appointments Committee had two meetings. The first meeting was on Tuesday, July 26, at 7:00 p.m. Committee members present were Millie Perillo, Gabe DeLuca, Naomi Schoenfeld, Patricia McGrath, Tom Burke, John Boccuzzi and Thomas Pia. Board members present were Mary Lou Rinaldi, Scott Morris, Nick Pavia, Ruth Powers, John Zelinski and David Martin.

4.

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE: (continued)

MRS. PERILLO said the second meeting was held on Tuesday, August 2, at 7:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Millie Perillo, Gabe DeLuca, Michael Fedele, Naomi Schoenfeld and John Boccuzzi.

Mrs. Perillo placed the following on the Consent Agenda: Items 2, 3, 4, 5, 9, 10, 11 and 12.

SMITH HOUSE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TERM EXPIRES

12/31/90

1. MR. RICHARD SONTAG (D)
728 Den Road
(Held in Committee 6/6/88,
Held in Steering 6/15/88)

HELD IN COMMITTEE (no interview)

SMITH HOUSE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2. MS. GAIL GORDON (D)
168 Echo Hill Drive

12/31/90

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

The Record notes that Mr. Burke did not participate in any discussion or vote on item #2.

CHIEF OF POLICE

3. MR. GEORGE W. MAYER
14 Bouton Circle

Replacing D. Guido who resigned.

5-year contract

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

COMMISSION ON AGING

4. MR. FREDERIC HAWES (R)
28 Ardsley Road

Reappointment

12/1/90

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

COMMISSION ON AGING

5. MR. HALSEY MOORE (R)
46 Tupper Drive

Reappointment

12/1/90

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - ALTERNATE

6. MS. SALLY LEVENE (R)
72 West Hill Lane

Reappointment

12/1/89

HELD IN COMMITTEE

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE: (continued)

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION

7. MR. WILLIAM T. HERMAN (R) Replacing Richard Zeranski 12/1/88 204 Soundview Avenue who resigned.

MRS. PERILLO stated the Committee did not have a quorum. Mr. DeLuca had to leave to attend another meeting. She Moved to take Mr. Herman's name out of Committee. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote.

MRS. PERILLO Moved for the confirmation of Mr. Herman. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to confirm Mr. Herman. APPROVED by a voice vote with one no vote, Mrs. Perillo and two abstentions, Mr. Pia and

COLISEUM AUTHORITY

MS. NANCY CUMMINGS (D) Replacing Dennis Greising 12/1/90 125 Lawn Avenue, Apt. A3 who resigned.

HELD IN COMMITTEE (Name to be withdrawn)

E. GAYNOR BRENNAN GOLF COURSE

MR. WILLIAM CARLUCCI (D) Reappointment 84 Rachelle Avenue

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

TRANSIT DISTRICT

10. MR. THOMAS FINN (D) Reappointment 678 High Kidge Road

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

STERLING FARMS GOLF AUTHORITY

11. MR. CHRISTOPHER BELLO (D) Replacing E. Callahan 1.1/89 99 Prospect Street who resigned.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

ZONING BOARD

12. MR. IRVING SLIFKIN (R) Replacing Al Siegartel 12/1/91 332 Mill Road (Held in Committee 5/2/88 Held on Pending 5/18/88)

whose term expired.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

MRS. PERILLO Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote.

MR. BOCCUZZI congratulated George W. Mayer on his appointment as Chief of Police. Mr. Boccuzzi said the City of Stamford was fortunate to have Mr. Mayer head the Police Department and Mr. Boccuzzi, along with other members of the Board, looked forward to working with the Chief.

MR. RUBINO said that he concurred with Mr. Boccuzzi's feelings. Mr. Mayer was a detective of the highest caliber and Mr. Rubino looked forward to Mr. Mayer's leadership in the future of the Police Department.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN thanked Mrs. Perillo and her Committee for having two meeting this month on the Appointments. President Goldstein also extended congratulations to the new Chief of Police George Mayer.

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Donald Donahue, Chairman

6.

Ms. Rinaldi reported for Mr. Donahue who is on vacation.

MS. RINALDI said the Fiscal Committee met on Wednesday, August 3, at 7:30 p.m. Present were Reps. Donahue, Rinaldi, Jetta, McManus, Martin, and Morris. Also present was Springdale Fire Department Chief Jim Colohan.

Ms. Rinaldi placed the following items on the Consent Agenda: Items 2, 8, 9, 10, 11, and 12. All Secondary Committees concurred or waived their Committee reports.

1. \$16,000.00 - NON-CITY SOCIAL SERVICES - CODE 540.4406 HOMELESS - MENTAL HEALTH - additional appropriation representing matching funds toward a grant received. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/30/88. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. (Board of Finance approved 7/19/88)

Above also referred to EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE.

MS. RINALDI said the \$16,000 being requested is matching funds that the city must put forth. In return for the \$16,000, the city receives \$201,000. Ms. Rinaldi Moved for approval. Seconded.

MR. ZELINSKI Moved to waive the Secondary Committee report. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote.

MRS. MAIHOCK said it stated in the back up material "non-city social services homeless mental health;" she was under the impression from the Committee that it was for providing a place for the homeless to go during the daytime. She asked if that was correct?

MS. RINALDI said that it was for a daytime drop in center for the homeless but the money comes through the State Department of Mental Health.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve \$16,000 for non-city social services. APPROVED by a voice vote.

FISCAL COMMITTEE: (continued)

2. \$66,868.00 - SPRINGDALE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT - AMENDMENT TO THE CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1988/89 - CODE 470.370 SPRINGDALE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT AMBULANCE.

To replace 10 year old ambulance. Recommended source of funding is taxation. Planning Board approved 7/12/88.

Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. (Board of Finance approved 7/19/88)

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

3. \$23,674.00 - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - CODE 301.1110 ADMINISTRATION SALARIES - additional appropriation to fund clerical position in the 10th floor area. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/30/88. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval.

Above also referred to PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

HELD IN COMMITTEE

4. \$ 500.00 - STAMFORD YOUTH PLANNING AND COORDINATING AGENCY (SYPCA) - CODE 205.7525 DIRECT SERVICES - additional appropriation for donation received from the Junior League of Stamford-Norwalk, Inc. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/30/88.

Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. (Board of Finance approved 7/19/88)

MS. RINALDI Moved to approve \$500 for SYPCA. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve item #4. APPROVED by voice vote with two no votes; Mr. Jetta and Mrs. Maihock.

5. \$ 313.00 - STAMFORD YOUTH PLANNING AND COORDINATING AGENCY (SYPCA) CODE 205.7551 MEDIATION SERVICE - additional appropriation
representing increase in grant from State Dept. of Children
and Youth Services for 1988/89 Student Mediation project.
Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/30/88. Contingent upon
Board of Finance approval. (Board of Finance approved 7/19/88)

MS. RINALDI Moved that item #5 be approved. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve \$313 for SYPCA. APPROVED by voice vote with two no votes; Mr. Jetta and Mrs. Maihock.

6. \$12,144.00 - POLICE DEPARTMENT - CODE 410.1110 SALARIES - additional appropriation to cover salary increases for three Deputy Chiefs, retroactive to July 1, 1987.

1987/1988 Code 410.1110 salaries \$ 6,072

1988/1989 Code 410.1110 salaries 6,072

\$12,144

Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 7/7/88. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. (Defeated by Board of Finance 7/19/88)

Above also referred to PERSONNEL COMMITTEE.

MS. RINALDI stated that no action taken on this item; defeated by the Board of Finance.

FISCAL COMMITTEE: (continued)

7. \$ 8,536.00 - FIRE DEPARTMENT - CODE 450.1110 SALARIES - additional appropriation to cover salary increases for one Fire Chief and one Assistant Fire Chief, retroactive to July 1, 1987. 1987/1988 Code 450.1110 salaries \$ 4,268 1988/1989 Code 450.1110 salaries 4,268 \$ 8,536

Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 7/7/88. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. (Board of Finance defeated 7/19/88)

Above also referred to PERSONNEL COMMITTEE.

MS. RINALDI stated that no action taken on this item; defeated by the Board of Finance.

8. PROPOSED RESOLUTION FOR THE AUTHORIZATION OF PRELIMINARY APPLICATION FOR STATE SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION GRANTS FOR BOARD OF EDUCATION CAPITAL PROJECT.

Alt/renovation Murphy School	\$335,221
School roofs	700,000
Burner/boiler replacements (Turn of River)	. 69,000
Asbestos removal	128,500
Turn of River Fire District Code compliance	412,300
Fuel conversion (Stillmeadow, Dayenport, & Westhill)	133,450
Paving/resurfacing	82,400
Submitted by Daniel G. Cook, Asst. Superintendent for	Support Services,
Stamford Public Schools, P. O. Box 9310, Stamford, CT	06904 6/15/88.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

9. PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO PROVIDE SERVICES FOR CONTROL AND PREVENTION OF TUBERCULOSIS. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani 7/5/88.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

10. PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO FILE AN APPLICATION WITH THE CONNECTICUT COMMISSION ON THE ARTS FOR AN ARTS PRESENTATION PROJECT GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF \$2,500. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/24/88.

MS. RINALDI Moved that the above resolution be approved. Seconded.

MRS. MAIHOCK asked for more information on this item; to whom this will go and for what purpose and where it will be expended?

MS. RINALDI said that no one was invited to speak on this item. This item was a grant.

MRS. MAIHOCK said that there was nothing in the background to answer her questions. She said other members of Fiscal also did not know, and she thought it should be brought out where the money would be spent.

MS. RINALDI stated that it would be for public art displays. She did not know precisely where.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote. APPROVED by voice vote.

FISCAL COMMITTEE: (continued)

11. PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT WITH THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT FOR FUNDING ASSISTANCE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE TRANSFER STATION. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/17/88.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

12. PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES REGARDING THE MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH GRANT. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/17/88.

MS. RINALDI Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by a voice vote.

LEGISLATIVE AND RULES COMMITTEE - David Martin and Maria Nakian, Co-Chairpersons

MR. MARTIN said the Legislative and Rules Committee met on Tuesday, August 2, at 7:30 p.m. Present were Committee members Martin, Nakian, Bromley, Powers, Senie, Zelinski, Esposito and Maihock. Also present were Reps. Jachimczyk, Morris and DeLuca. Attending the meeting for most of the items on the Agenda was Mary Sommer, Corporation Counsel and Richard Robinson. Also attending were Ellen Isidro for item #5 and Vincent Akhimie for item #7.

 (LSR20.35) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE FORMATION OF A LOCAL HOUSING PARTNERSHIP FOR THE CITY OF STAMFORD. Submitted by Members of the Special Committee to Assess Priority Issues, 7/7/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

2. (L&R20.3) FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE REGULATING STREET VENDORS. Submitted by Reps. Maria Nakian and David Martin 11/17/87. Held in Committee 12/7/87, 3/7 and 4/4/88. Held on Pending 1/13/88. Approved for publication 5/2/88. Approved for republication 6/6/88. Returned to Committee 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

3. (L&R20.32) PROPOSED RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE APPROVAL OF A LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF STAMFORD AND THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR SURPLUS I-95 HIGHWAY PROPERTY, BROWN AVENUE. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani, 6/6/88. Planning Board approved 6/30/88. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

4. (LER20.22) RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF STAMFORD AND THE STAMFORD MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES FEDERAL CREDIT UNION FOR 2,306 SQUARE FEET OF OFFICE SPACE ON THE SIXTH FLOOR OF THE GOVERNMENT CENTER FOR THE ANNUAL RENT OF \$1.00. Held in Committee 5/2/88. Planning Board approved 4/19/88. Board of Finance deferred 6/9/88. Held on Pending Agenda 5/18/88. Held in Committee 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

LEGISLATIVE AND RULES COMMITTEE: (continued)

10.

5. (LER20.25) RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF STAMFORD AND THE COMMITTEE ON TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT, INC. (CTE) FOR LAND AND BUILDING ON SOUTH SIDE OF HENRY STREET AND KNOWN AS THE OLD CLOONAN SCHOOL FOR THE TERM OF FIVE (5) YEARS FOR THE TERM RENT OF ONE (\$1.00) DOLLAR. Submitted by Mary E. Sommer, Corporation Counsel, 4/6/88. Held in Committee 5/2/88. Held on Pending Agenda 5/18/88. Planning Board approved 4/19/88. Board of Finance approved 6/9/88. Held in Committee 7/11/88.

MR. MARTIN stated that some members thought the five year lease was too long a period and thought that we should have additional clauses in the lease that would allow the city to terminate the lease on a very short notice. Ellen Isidro and Mary Sommer, Corporation Counsel appeared before the Committee and spoke on the issue, and they informed the Committee that due to various funding sources that we control on CTE if we should so desire to terminate the lease or have CTE move out of the building, we could effectuate that. Mr. Martin said that there was no anticipation that the city would want to terminate the lease and use the building for any other purpose within five years.

Mr. Martin said that Corporation Counsel and Ellen Isidro, Human Services Coordinator agreed that this lease has been negotiated for a long period of time; for well over a year. Mr. Martin stated that this is the first time that we are going to have a formal lease agreement with CTE. The lease includes very important provisions for the ability to monitor the use of funds by that organization.

The Committee voted 8-0-0 to approve the lease between the city and CTE. Moved. Seconded.

MR. RUBINO Moved to return this item to Committee. He saw no harm in a clause that would allow us to escape from the lease and provide other suitable quarters for CTE in the event an offer is made to purchase the land at a price that is attractive to the city. Seconded.

MR. RUBINO said Mr. Martin makes reference to certain back door methods to force CTE out. Mr. Rubino would not like to do that. He said it should be negotiated and agreed upon between the city and CTE. Some circumstances, if any, we may need to relocate them in the future if the land is needed for some other purpose or for sale.

MR. MARTIN said that he opposes the motion. The Committee has held this item two months. This item was examined very carefully by the Board of Finance for over two months. Mr. Martin stated again that there are no plans at present or foreseeable plans to use this building of any other purpose. The lease has been negotiated for a long period of time with difficulty by various members of the administration. To reopen negotiations may prolong this period of time when we don't have a contract and the contract provides for very important provisions in terms of getting financial information on CTE's operations.

MR. LYONS Moved the question. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote.

LEGISLATIVE AND RULES COMMITTEE: (continued)

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote to return to Committee the resolution for approval of a lease between the city and CTE. DEFEATED 23 no and 8 yes votes.

The record will note that Messrs. Burke, Pia and Morris did not participate in any discussion or vote on this item.

The Chair noted that Mr. Jachimczyk has joined the meeting. There are 36 members present and 4 absent.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote on the main motion to approve the resolution approving a lease between the city and CTE. APPROVED by voice vote with 1 no vote, Mr. Jetta and 1 abstention, Ms. Summerville.

6. (L&R20.11) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING SEC. 9.3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES CONCERNING THE MARKING AND USE OF CITY VEHICLES. Submitted by Reps. John Boccuzzi, Robert DeLuca, Mildred Perillo and Thomas Pia 1/4/88. Held on Pending Agenda 1/13 and 5/18/88. Held in Committee 3/7, 4/4, 5/2 and 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

7. (LER20.34) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED CRDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 231 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. This chapter pertains to vehicles and traffic. Submitted by Asst. Corporation Counsel Richard Robinson 7/13/88. Amendment submitted by Rep. John R. Zelinski 6/13/88. Held in Committee 7/11/88.

Above also referred to TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

8. (LGR20.37) MATTER OF THE CONTRACT CONCERNING THE STAMFORD THEATRE PROPERTIES, THE STAMFORD CENTER FOR THE ARTS AND THE COLISEUM AUTHORITY. Submitted by David Blum, Chairman, Coliseum Authority Liaison Committee 7/13/88.

Above also referred to the COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - Scott Morris, Chairman

MR. MORRIS said the Personnel Committee met on Thursday, July 28, 1988, at 7:40 p.m. in the Democratic Caucus Room. Committee members present were Reps. Thomas Burke, David Jachimczyk, Scott Morris, Naomi Schoenfeld, Janet Weintraub and John Zelinski. Reps. Kathleen Reilly and Nicholas Pavia were excused. Also attending were: for item 1, Thomas Barrett, Labor Negotiator, and for item 2, Mary Sommer, Corporation Counsel, Barry Boodman, Asst. Corporation Counsel, Sim Bernstein, Director of Personnel, Benjamin Tenaglia, Business Agent for the Teamsters Local 145 and an employee of the Public Works Department.

A complete report of the Personnel Committee meeting was sent to all Board members and will be attached to these Minutes.

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE: (continued)

1. DEVELOPMENT OF GUIDELINES FOR PLACEMENT OF POSITIONS IN THE UNCLASSIFIED SERVICE. Submitted by Rep. Scott A. Morris, Chairman, Personnel Committee 5/4/88. Held in Committee 6/6 and 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

2. REVIEW THE POLICY OF EMPLOYEE SUSPENSIONS. Submitted by Rep. Robert DeLuca R-14, 4/25/88. Held in Committee 6/6 and 7/11/88.

MR. MORRIS stated that there is no policy of suspending municipal employees with pay for alleged infractions. With reference made to the school teachers, Mr. Barrett stated that activites and procedures of the Board of Education are beyond his purview.

3. MATTER OF A PENSION FOR MARY HOLAHAN, CLERK, BOARD OF FINANCE. Requested by John Mallozzi, Chairman, Board of Finance 5/18/88. Held in Committee 6/6 and 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE - Richard Lyons, Chairman - No report.

PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWER COMMITTEE - Ellen Bromley & Joseph DeRose, Co-Chairpersons

MRS. BROMLEY said the Committee met on Wednesday, August 3, 1988. Present were members Bromley, DeRose, McManus, Russo, Zelinski, Weintraub and Owens. Also present were Reps. Esposito and Martin, and Commissioner of Public Works John O'Brien.

MR. ZELINSKI wanted the Record to show that Mr. Wayne Tyson of Clairol, Harry Harris of SACIA and several private refuse collectors were present at the hearing.

 FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE REGARDING HAULAWAY FEES INCINERATOR ASH. Submitted by Reps. Stanley Esposito R-11 and Robert DeLuca R-14, 4/7/88. Held in Committee 5/2 and 6/6/88. Approved for publication 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MRS. BROMLEY said a public hearing was held on item 1. There was much input from the community. There are a number of questions which have to be answered.

2. MATTER OF THE BEAUTIFICATION OF THE INCINERATOR. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani 4/19/88. Held in Committee 6/6 and 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Ruth Powers, Chairwoman

MRS. POWERS said the Health and Protection Committee met on Wednesday, August 3. Present were Committee members Russo, Powers and Schoenfeld. Also Reps. Maihock and Martin. The Committee did not have a quorum. The Committee met again this evening at 6:30 p.m. Present were Committee members Russo, Powers, Senie, Burke, Schoenfeld, Summerville and Rubino. Also present was Rep. Maihock.

HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE: (continued)

 FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE OUTLAWING POSSESSION OF DANGEROUS ANIMALS IN THE CITY OF STAMFORD. Submitted by Reps. Audrey Maihock R-19 and Ruth Powers D-8, 5/13/88. Held in Committee 6/6 and 7/11/88.

MRS. POWERS said the Committee voted 7 to 0 to approve the ordinance for publication. Moved. Seconded.

Mrs. Powers said that all members received a copy of the proposed ordinance. There is an amendment to the ordinance under the definitions of "Dangerous Animals." The Committee voted to include "caimans, crocodiles and alligators." The motion was Moved and Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote on the amendment. APPROVED by voice vote.

MRS. POWERS said another change was made. A fine was added. This would be: item 4. Any person found to be in violation of this ordinance shall be guilty of an infraction and fined not more than \$90. The motion was Moved and Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote on the amendment. APPROVED by voice vote.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote on the proposed ordinance as amended. APPROVED by voice vote.

2. FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 127, ARTICLE II - SECTION 127-3, SECTION 127-10; ARTICLE III - ENTIRE ARTICLE; and ARTICLE IV - ENTIRE ARTICLE. This matter pertains to fire prevention. Submitted by Steven E. Heilner, Fire Marshal, Turn of River Fire Department, Inc., 268 Turn of River Road, Stamford, CT 06905, 5/9/88. Approved for publication 6/6/88. Held in Committee 7/11/88.

MRS. POWERS said a public hearing was held. No one attended. This evening, the Committee voted 4 to 0 to approve. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the ordinance. APPROVED by voice vote.

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE - Thomas Pia & Robert DeLuca, Co-Chairpersons

MR. PIA said the Committee met on Tuesday, July 25, at 7:30 p.m. in the Government Center. Present were Patricia McGrath, Mildred Perillo, Gerald Rybnick, Robert DeLuca and Thomas Pia. Excuse were Bobby Owens and Michael Fedele. Present representing Terry Conner Rink was Dean Pomeroy and Gary Belden, a hockey enthusiast, and John Roman, WSTC.

Mr. Pia placed items 3 and 4 on the Consent Agenda.

 MATTER OF ESTABLISHING A TRUST FUND FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF PUBLIC PARKS IN THE CITY. Submitted by Reps. Robert DeLuca R-14, David Blum D-12, and Thomas Pia R-7, 7/6/88.

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE: (continued)

 FEASIBILITY OF EXPANDING THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION FROM FIVE TO SEVEN MEMBERS. Submitted by Reps. Robert DeLuca R-14, Mildred Perillo D-9, and Thomas Pia R-7, 7/5/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

3. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION TO HANG A BANNER ON SUMMER STREET FROM OCTOBER 24 TO NOVEMBER 6, 1988 TO PUBLICIZE ANTIQUE SHOW. Requested by The Women of St. Francis Episcopal Church, Mrs. Dennis Canada, Chairwoman, Antique Show, 2810 Long Ridge Road, Stamford, CT 06903 6/14/88.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

4. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION TO HANG A BANNER ON BEDFORD STREET FROM OCTOBER 15 TO OCTOBER 29, 1988 TO PUBLICIZE THE 2nd ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION DAY. Requested by Sandy Finder, Chairwoman, Mayor's Task Force on Household Hazardous Collection 7/13/88.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

5. PROPOSED RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STAMFORD GOLF AUTHORITY AND THE CITY OF STAMFORD, WHEREBY PERMIT FUNDS RECEIVED BY THE AUTHORITY BE SHARED EQUALLY BETWEEN E. GAYNOR BRENNAN AND STERLING FARMS GOLF COURSES. Submitted by Robert DeLuca, Co-Chairperson, Parks and Recreation Committee 3/21/88. Held in Committee 5/2, 6/6 and 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. PIA Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote.

MR. PIA Movedto Suspend the Rules to take up an item not on the Agenda. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote with 1 no vote, Mrs. Perillo.

6. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION TO HANG A BANNER ON BEDFORD STREET FROM AUGUST 21 TO SEPTEMBER 3, 1988 TO PUBLICIZE THE STAMFORD CLASSIC MARATHON. Requested by Stamford Athletic Association, 888 Canal Street, Stamford, CT 06902, Cyrus M. Carlton, Treasurer, 8/3/88.

MR. PIA Moved to approve the hanging of the banner. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the above item. APPROVED by voice vote with 1 no vote, Mrs. Perillo.

MR. PIA Moved to Suspend the Rules to take up an item not on the Agenda. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote with 1 no vote, Mrs. Perillo.

7. APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 1988/89 FEES FOR THE TERRY CONNERS ICE RINK. Approved by Parks and Recreation Commission 7/20/88. Submitted by Robert B. Cook, Supt., Parks and Recreation Department 7/22/88.

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE: (continued)

MR. PIA Moved to approve the fees. Seconded.

Mr. Pia stated that the fees were submitted late because of the newly created Parks and Recreation Commission. The Commission did not have much time to approve the different changes. An adjourned meeting of the Parks and Recreation Committee was held this evening. The Committee made some changes to the fees that were proposed. The Committee approved the changes.

The changes were as follows: II. Skate Rental, add Birthday Party Residents only after the word "uses." Group III, Non resident Child from 7.00 to 8.00; Non Resident Adult from 9.00 to 10.00. IV. Patch and Freestyle (Youth), add instruction 10-22 per hour; 10 children per instructor. 1st session change proposed 4.50 to 5.00. 2nd consecutive session, change proposed 4.25 to 4.00 (these are under Resident)

Under non resident, 1st session, change proposed 6.00 to 8.00, 2nd consecutive session, change proposed 6.00 to 8.00, 3rd consecutive session change proposed 6.00 to 7.00. Non subscribed session (walk on) change proposed 7.50 to 10.00. Under Patch and Freestyle Card, etc. non-residents change from 70.00 to 90.00.

Under VIII. Ice Rental (per hour) base fee, change from proposed 136.00 to 150.00. Change non resident pays full hourly rate from proposed 136.00 to 150.00

MR. PIA Moved the amendments. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the amendments. APPROVED by voice vote with 3 no votes, Mrs. Perillo, Ms. Summerville and Ms. Mitchell.

MR. PIA Moved to approve the fees as amended. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the fees as amended. APPROVED by voice vote with 3 no votes, Mrs. Perillo, Ms. Summerville and Ms. Mitchell.

EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - John Zelinski, Chairman

MR. ZELINSKI said the Education, Welfare and Government Committee met on Wednesday, July 27, 1988, at 7:30 in the Democratic Caucus Room. Present were Chairman Rep. Zelinski, Reps. Reilly, Burke, Russo, Evanko, Powers and Bromley. Also present was Rep. Rubino and Joanne Epstein.

 MATTER OF THE NEED FOR A LOCAL VETERANS COUNSELOR. Submitted by Rep. James Rubino R-7, 6/9/88. Held in Committee 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. ZELINSKI said the item on the Agenda was discussed. Input was received from Researcher Sandra Schlachtmeyer regarding services available to veterans in Stamford.

Mr. Zelinski said there was a Connecticut Department of Veterans Affairs located in the Governor's office on Bedford Street. A notice of hours and the phone number is listed.

EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE: (continued)

MR. ZELINSKI said a number of veterans call the office. In one week, the officer at the office helped 50 people, 20 were from Stamford. In another given week, she helped 35 people, 10 were from Stamford. Barbara McKelvey, Director of the Shelter for the Homeless supplied us with some information. She said that 41 of the homeless people are veterans. Joanne Epstein from Chris Shays' office said that statistics show that at the present time, there are 104,060 veterans living in Fairfield County.

Mr. Zelinski stated that Robert Mendela, Caseworker Supervisor for Social Services Department of the city said that veterans could receive city benefits. He said that there were 46 veterans out of the 510 welfare cases which is 9% of the caseload who receive general assistance.

Also, Joan Ackerman, Administrator of the Smith House provided statistics showing that of the 128 persons at Smith House, 4 or 5 are veterans and another 4 or 5 are widows of veterans.

Mr. Zelinski said the Committee will continue to get information through the Researcher and other sources. Further reports will be made.

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Frank Mollo, Chairman

MR. MOLLO said the Housing and Community Development Committee met on Thursday, August 4, 1988. Present were Reps. Pavia, Mitchell and Mollo. Also attending was Bob Violette from the Housing Authority and Maddie Thorton from Vidal Courts Tenant Association.

Mr. Mollo said the Committee voted 3 - 0 to hold for further information and discussion.

L. MATTER OF HAVING CHILD PROTECTIVE DEVICES ON WINDOWS IN PUBLIC HOUSING. Submitted by Rep. Frank Mollo, Chairman, Housing and Community Development Committee 7/6/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

16.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE - Annie M. Summerville, Chairwoman - No report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Stanley Esposito, Chairman

MR. ESPOSITO said the Environmental Protection Committee met on Thursday, August 4, 1988, at 7:30 p.m. in the Republican Caucus Room. Attending were Committee members Esposito and Maihock. Committee member Blum was excused due to illness. Also attending were Rep. James Rubino, Tom Rooney, WSTC, Marvin Serra representing Public Works, Phyliss Mazik of the Health Department, Paul Mazik, retired, of the Health Department, Anthony Davis, Mrs. Daniel Pennachio and Daniel Pennachio, Jr., citizens of Stamford.

Mr. Esposito placed item 1 on the Consent Agenda.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF HEALTH TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT AND ANY OTHER AGREEMENTS WITH THE COMMISSIONER OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION WHICH PERTAIN TO DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY UNDER SECTIONS 22a-2A-1 AND 22a-2a-2 OF REGULATIONS OF CONNECTICUT STATE AGENCIES. Submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani 6/17/88.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE: (continued)

 MATTER OF FLY ASH AND SOOT FROM THE INCINERATOR. Submitted by Reps. James Rubino R-7 and Stanley Esposito R-11, 6/9/88. Report made and Held in Committee 7/11/88.

MR. ESPOSITO said the above item was discussed with a recommendation that a meeting be set up with the Director of Health Dr. McBride, where an investigative procedure be structured in order to determine the source of the fly ash. This has not as yet been determined.

MR. ESPOSITO Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - Mary Lou Rinaldi, Chairwoman

MS. RINALDI said the Transportation Committee met on Thursday, July 28, 1988, at 7:30 p.m. Attending were Committee members Tom Pia, Audrey Maihock, David Blum and Mary Lou Rinaldi. Also present were Tom Fava, Department of Public Works and Sue Prosi, Department of Traffic and Parking.

Ms. Rinaldi said that no vote was required on any of the items on the Agenda. Ms. Rinaldi submitted a written report which was sent to all members and is attached to these Minutes.

 STATUS REPORT ON THE STAMFORD PARTNERSHIP EXPRESS BUS SHUTTLE FROM TRUMBULL TO STAMFORD. Submitted by Rep. Frank Mollo D-9, 6/24/88.

REPORT ATTACHED

2. MATTER OF UNPROTECTED PLATFORMS AT THE TRANSPORTATION CENTER. Submitted by Rep. David Blum D-12, 1/7/88. Held in Committee 2/1, 3/7, 4/4/, 5/2, 6/6 and 7/11/88.

REPORT ATTACHED

3. MATTER OF NON-OPERATING ESCALATORS AT THE RAILROAD STATION. Submitted by Rep. Audrey Maihock R-18, 1/12/88. Held in Committee 2/1, 3/7, 4/4, 5/2, 6/6 and 7/11/88.

REPORT ATTACHED

4. DESIGNATED CROSSWALKS FOR PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC. Submitted by Rep. Thomas Pia R-7, 6/9/88.

REPORT ATTACHED

LABOR CONTRACTS LIAISON COMMITTEE - Thomas Burke, Chairman - No report.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES

HOUSE COMMITTEE - Gerald Rybnick, Chairman

COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE - David Blum, Chairman

Mr. Blum was absent from the meeting this evening due to illness.

 MATTER OF PROMOTING TOURISM IN THE CITY OF STAMFORD. Submitted by David Blum, Chairman, Coliseum Authority Lisiaon Committee 2/4/88. Held in Committee 3/7, 4/4 and 5/2/88. Reports made and Held in Committee 6/6 and 7/11/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

SPECIAL COMMITTEE TO ASSESS PRIORITY ISSUES - Scott Morris & David Jachimczyk,
Co-Chairpersons

No report.

ETHICS COMMITTEE - Maria Nakian and Ruth Powers, Co-Chairpersons

MRS. POWERS said the Committee did not meet.

 REVEIW OF CODE OF ETHICS (ORDINANCE NO. 445 SUPPLEMENTAL). Submitted by Ruth Powers and Maria Nakian, Co-Chairpersons, Ethics Committee 1/8/88. Held in Committee 2/1, 3/7, 4/4, 6/6 and 7/11/88. Held in Steering 4/13/88.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

RESOLUTIONS

MRS. POWERS Moved for Suspension of the Rules to take up a resolution not on the Agenda. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote with one no vote, Mrs. Perillo.

 SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLTION CONGRATULATING HARRY SELIN ON THE CELEBRATION OF HIS 81st BIRTHDAY. Submitted by Reps. Ruth Powers and Scott Morris - 8/8/88.

MRS. POWERS Moved to approve the resolution. Seconded.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN called for a vote to approve the resolution. APPROVED by voice vote.

PETITIONS - None

MINUTES

- 1. JUNE 6, 1988 REGULAR BOARD MEETING APPROVED AS CORRECTED BY MRS. MAIHOCK.
- 2. JULY 11, 1988 REGULAR BOARD MEETING NOT READY.

COMMUNICATIONS - None

OLD BUSINESS - None

NEW BUSINESS

MRS. MAIHOCK said she spoke to Mr. Rybnick and he suggested that she speak before the Board regarding the Caucus Rooms. Mrs. Maihock said the chairs in the Caucus Rooms are all askew. Also, on occasions the ash trays are filled and empty cups are on the tables.

Mrs. Maihock said that whoever uses the rooms, and we don't want to say they cannot use the rooms, should be advised the rooms should be left in clean order.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN said the rooms were to be cleaned each evening. The Administrative Assistant will be asked to contact the Maintenance people regarding this. No meetings should be in the rooms of non-Board nature during the day of the Board meeting. If Board members use the rooms, it should be up to them to keep them clean.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m. after the motion to adjourn was made, Seconded and Approved.

Anne A. Kachaluba, Administrative Assistant

and Recording Secretary

20th Board of Representatives

APPROVED:

Sandra Goldstein, President 20th Board of Representatives

SG:AMS:ak Enclosures

TAMVOTE - ATTENDANCE

19:33:28 08-08-19

0		NAME		NO			NAME
1	PRS	EVANKO, JUDITH	*	:	21	PRS	NAME LIVINGSTON, JEREMIAH SENIE, KATHRYN CLEMMONS, GARY
2	PRS	NAKIAN, MARIA			22	PRS	SENIE, KATHRYN
3	PRS	PIA, THOMAS			23	PRS	CLEMMONS, GARY
4	PRS	OWENS, BOBBY			24	N/P	DONAHUE, DONALD
5	PRS	MC GRATH, PATRICIA					
6	PRS	LYONS, RICHARD			26	PRS	PAVIA, NICHOLAS
7	PRS	JETTA, KURT			27	PRS	MITCHELL, ELAINE
8	PRS	JETTA, KURT RYBNICK, GERALD MOLLO, FRANK BURKE, THOMAS			28	PRS	CARDILLO, DOMINICK
9	PRS	MOLLO, FRANK			29	PRS	MORRIS, SCOTT
0.	PRS	BURKE, THOMAS			30	PRS	WEINTRAUB, JANET
.1	PRS	MAIHOCK, AUDREY MARTIN, DAVID DE LUCA, ROBERT			31	PRS	ZELINSKI, JOHN
.2	PRS	MARTIN, DAVID			32	PRS	SCHOENFELD, NAOMI
.3	PRS	DE LUCA, ROBERT			33	PRS	DE ROSE, JOSEPH
4	PRS	ESPOSITO, STANLEY			34	PRS	POWERS, RUTH
.5	PRS	MC MANUS, WILLIAM			35	N/P	BLUM, DAVID
.6	N/P	FEDELE, MICHAEL					JACHIMCZYK, DAVID
.7	PRS	RUBINO, JAMES			37	PRS	RINALDI, MARY LOU
		BROMLEY, ELLEN					RUSSO, THOMAS
.9	N/P	REILLY, KATHLEEN					BOCCUZZI, JOHN
		SUMMERVILLE, ANNIE					GOLDSTEIN, SANDRA
		Ť.					

TAMVOTE - VOTE PROCESSING

NOT PRESENT 5

08-08-1988 19:34:14

PRESENT 35

TEST VOTE YES

NAME

NO NAME

1 YES EVANKO, JUDITH

2 YES NAKIAN, MARIA

3 YES PIA, THOMAS

4 YES OWENS, BOBBY

5 YES MC GRATH, PATRICIA

6 YES LYONS, RICHARD

7 YES JETTA, KURT

8 YES RYBNICK, GERALD

9 YES MOLLO, FRANK

10 YES BURKE, THOMAS

11 YES MAIHOCK, AUDREY

12 YES MARTIN, DAVID

13 YES DE LUCA, ROBERT

14 YES ESPOSITO, STANLEY

15 YES MC MANUS, WILLIAM

16 N/P FEDELE, MICHAEL

17 YES BROMLEY, ELLEN

18 YES ROWLEY, ELLEN

19 N/P REILLY, KATHLEEN

20 YES GOLDSTEIN, SANDRA

N/P 5 N/V 0 YES 35 NO 0 ABS TEST VOTE Yes: